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Contents of the Addendum 
A. Questions and Answers – Enclosed are answers to questions sent to the RFP email 

address and submitted through the pre-submission conference. 
B. Contact Information – Contact information is provided for those individuals who 

attended the pre-submission conference and indicated their willingness to share their 
contact information. 

C. Preliminary Geotechnical Report (uploaded to the website as separate file) 
D. Topographical Survey (uploaded to the website as separate CAD file).  
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A. Questions and Answers 
 

General 

Q1: Will you be releasing a list of attendees for the presubmission conference? 
A: Attached herewith is the list of attendees who consented to share their contact information. 
 
Q2: What role will the community play in the selection of the development team?  If none, what 
happens if the Community Board rejects the selected Proposal even if it is consistent with the 
Community Visioning Report? Does the Community have final veto power over the project? 
A: The public, including the Community Board, does not play a role in the selection of the development 
team.  However, HPD held a series of workshops to engage the North Shore community on the site’s 
conditions, HPD’s affordable housing programs, and to better understand community priorities for future 
development to inform the RFP, including the selection criteria used to select the development team.  
Once a development team is selected, HPD will work with the team to present the proposal at Community 
Board meeting(s) and further refine and finalize project details. The Community Board does not have veto 
power over a project. 
 
Q2: What are the specific eligibility requirements for the non-profit to fulfill the threshold 
requirement?  If the non-profit is the sole entity in the ownership project, would it be required to 
be partner with an M/WBE? 
A: An eligible non-profit is defined in the RFP as a corporation formed under the New York Not-for-Profit 
Corporation Law that is not controlled by or under common control with one or more for-profit entities on 
the Development Team (or any owner, principal, employee, or affiliate of any such entity). The 
Development Team must include an M/WBE or Eligible Non-Profit that in either case will hold at least 
25% of the managing ownership interest in the Project. Therefore, if the sole ownership entity is an 
Eligible Non-Profit, the threshold requirement described on page 25 of the RFP would be satisfied.  
 
Q3: Will we be able to get physical access to enter the site? Is there any way to do a virtual tour 
we can do? 
A: No. 
 
Q4: Will the UDAAP need to be re-approved through the ULURP process to approve disposition?  
A: The City has already received ULURP approval for the Site, including for disposition of city-owned 
property pursuant to ULURP No. C060469 PPR.  No further ULURP actions are anticipated. Designation 
of the area as an Urban Development Action Area and approval of the project as an Urban Development 
Action Area Project (UDAAP) by the City Planning Commission and the City Council pursuant to Article 
16 of the General Municipal Law and approval of the disposition and its terms by the Mayor will be 
required.   
 
Q5: Are there any specific design elements or programmatic uses from the Visioning Workshop 
Series Report and Findings that HPD will give preference to?   
A: Respondents should review the report in-whole and consult the report’s findings as they craft their 
proposal.  Submissions that thoughtfully consider the goals and priorities from the report will be given 
competitive preference.  
 
 

2



Finance 

Q6: Will HPD consider proposals that do not use city capital subsidy?  
A: Proposals that do not use city capital subsidy will be considered for competitive review provided the 
proposal satisfies the RFP threshold requirements.  
 
Q7: Will prevailing wage requirements for construction of the project be required? 
A: Respondents should assume prevailing wage requirements for construction only if they are utilizing 
financing programs that trigger such requirements such as, but not limited to, a program assuming more 
than 8 project-based vouchers.  
 
Q8: Are there any AMI requirements for this project? 
A:  Submission must comply with threshold requirements outlined in the RFP and comply with the 
applicable term sheet(s). 
 
Q9: Can non-residential income be used to cross-subsidize residential component of the project? 
A: Yes.  
 
Q10: What constitutes realistic assumptions for residential and non-residential rents? 
A: Rents and sale prices for residential units or other income sources must be deemed realistic and 
substantiated by market comparables per industry standards. 
 
Q11: HPD's ELLA term sheet also requires 50% ELV/VLI units.  Is this 50% of the total or 50% of 
those below 80% assuming income averaging?  
A: The HPD ELLA term sheet requires 50% of total project units to be ELI/VLI units. 
 
Q12: HPD's ELLA term sheet says that the weighted average affordability should be 53% to 54% of 
AMI.  Does this reflect only the units below 80% of AMI?  If we propose a tier between 81% and 
100% of AMI, is this tier included in the weighted average affordability calculation to be capped at 
54% of AMI? 
A: The weighted average AMI of 53-54% should be inclusive of all units, both tax credit and non-tax credit 
units. 
 
Q13: The HDC and HPD term sheets for the ELLA program appear to be inconsistent with regards 
to the affordability tiers.  Which should we assume for our proposals?  
A: Respondents should comply with HPD’s ELLA term sheets, including AMI term sheets.  

Zoning 

Q14: Are we to assume we can use the entire “Sub-Area A Parcel” lot area to calculate the floor 
area available for the subject site?  
A: Yes. 
 
Q15: How much floor area will the future school use? Will the school have enough available floor 
area under the zoning carve-out?   
A: The school is currently not in the 5-year capital plan and has not been designed.  We anticipate the 
future school will not exceed the 100,000 zoning square feet exempt from floor area calculations per 
ZR116-22.   
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Site Conditions and CEQR 

Q16: Can respondents rely upon the information analyzed in the CEQR analysis completed or the 
rezoning? 
A: HPD and the City will evaluate what level of further analysis will need to be completed to fulfill the 
obligations outlined for Environmental Review on page 34 of the RFP.  The Developer will furthermore be 
responsible for completing all environmental studies and implementing any remedial measures identified 
in connection with the Project.  
 
Q17: The FEIS for Bay Street Corridor Rezoning contains a Phase II hazmat report.  Is there any 
remediation work that has been completed by the City? 
A:  Remediation work for the subject site has not been completed. The Developer will be responsible for 
preparing and implementing a Phase II Subsurface Investigation work plan and, in the event 
contamination is present, a remediation plan for the entire subject site. The Phase II work plan, Phase II 
results, and any required remediation plan would be subject to review and approval by HPD’s 
Environmental Planning Unit as well as either DEP or OER. No such investigation or remediation plan 
development may proceed without the oversight of these City agencies.  
 
Q18: Is there any information or studies on the soil conditions? 
A: Please see the Preliminary Geotechnical Report prepared by ARUP for EDC attached herewith.  This 
report should be used for reference only for the purpose of responding to this RFP.   
 
Q19: Are there any site surveys that HPD can make available? The geometry of the site is very 
complex. 
A: Please see the CAD file uploaded to the website in conjunction with this addendum. This CAD file, 
which has been modified by HPD to exclude other portions of the New Stapleton Waterfront, is part 
Preliminary Design drawings prepared by ARUP for the North Open Space + Infrastructure issued to EDC 
in December 2019.   The parcel boundaries in this CAD file were used by HPD as a base for the “Sub-
Area A Parcel” boundaries in Appendix A of the RFP.  The CAD file is to be used for reference only for 
the purpose of responding to this RFP.  
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Name Org Name Email
Will D'Avella BFC Partners wdavella@gmail.com
Stacie Wong GLUCK+ swong@gluckplus.com
david ostrich W architecture and landscape architecture dostrich@w-architecture.com
Chanda Dawadi New Destiny Housing Corporation Cdawadi@newdestinyhousing.org
Matthew Bremer Architecture in Formation PC matt@aifny.com
Reality Curry Amie Gross Architects rsc@amiegrossarchitects.com
Lindi The Monroe Group LLC lindi@themonroegroupllc.com
Meredith CetraRuddy Architecture coccom@cetraruddy.com
Eugene Flotteron CetraRuddy Architecture flotterone@cetraruddy.com
Katie Devine Rockabill kdevine@rockabill.com
Yarden sivan Omni New York LLC Ysivan@onyllc.com
Rachel Belsky Langan rbelsky@langan.com
Sando Thordarson DXA Studio st@dxastudio.com
Richard Conley New Destiny Housing rconley@newdestinyhousing.org
Sarah Hoff Woods Bagot sarah.hoff@woodsbagot.com
Glenn O. Vickers II MRV Group info@mrvgroup.org
Zerin Demir Selfhelp Realty Group, Inc. zdemir@selfhelp.net
Dennis Michel Woods Bagot dennis.michel@woodsbagot.com
David Leven LEVENBETTS dl@levenbetts.com
Lorinda Karoff Karoff Consulting lkaroff@karoffconsulting.com
kirk goodrich monadnock development kgoodrich@moncon.com
Eric Feldmann Sisters of Charity Housing Development Corporation epfeldmann@att.net
Marianne DiTommaso Saint Joseph's Medical Center, Department of Residential Services mditommaso@svwsjmc.org
Jeffrey Taub AKRF jtaub@akrf.com
Dylan Salmons Pennrose mwardlaw@pennrose.com
Matthew Janeczko SCHDC mjaneczko@schousingny.org
Jacqueline de Dios R.F. Wilkins Consultants jdedios@rfwconsultants.com
Arden Sokolow Douglaston asokolow@ddny.com
Frank Dubinsky Monadnock Fdubinsky@monadnockdevelopment.com
Amir Shouri Tabe Shouri Architect info@tabeshouri.com
Duke Claghorn Langan dclaghorn@langan.com
Jaiye B. Falusi Tishman Speyer jfalusi@tishmanspeyer.com
Jorge Chang Urban Architectural Initiatives jchang@uai-ny.com
Ellen Kackmann The Albanese Organization ekackmann@albaneseorg.com
Nadja Barlera GNY LECET nbarlera@gnylecet.org
Jacob Sigel CB Emmanuel Realty, LLC jacob.sigel@cbemmanuel.com
Lauren M LaMack Services for the UnderServed llamack@sus.org
Diego Barberena Adentro db@adentro.us
Bernard T Carr Benchmark Title Agency LLC bcarr@benchmarkta.COM
Phanna Prum ICP, Inc. pprum@icpcorp.com
Zeeba Rasheed ZMETROPOLIS, LLC zeeba@zmetropolis.com
Kathleen Bielsa Northfield Community LDC kbielsa@northfieldldc.org
Troy Collins Adirondack Community Development troy.collins@adkdevelop.com
Victor Salerno Adirondack Community Development victor.salerno@adkdevelop.com
Pablo Santiago Ismael Leyva Architects psantiago@ilarch.com
Chimere Mayo Mayo Taricemayo@hotmail.com
Richard Martoglio RPM Development Group rmartoglio@rpmdev.com
Shay Alster GF55 Architects, LLP shay@gf55.com
Madonna Thompson Titanium streets madonnathompson05@yahoo.com
Raquel Batrony New Stapleton Waterfront raquelbatrony@aol.com
R.Randy Lee Smart Living Development Strategies rrexlex@aol.com
Renwick Paige Energy Infrastructure Partners renwick.paige@energyinfrapartners.com
Reagan Branch Pyramid Safety &amp; Health Solutions Inc. reagan@pyramidsoln.com
Michael Keane Cameron Engineering &amp; Associates mkeane@cameronengineering.com
Marta Sanders Architecture Outfit marta@archoutfit.com
Meredith Cocco CetraRuddy Architecture coccom@cetraruddy.com
Christina Chorna Fortitude Capital LLC cc@fortitudepe.com
Uzma Ahmad Lozier, Inc uahmad@lozierinc.com
Mansoor Khan Lozier, Inc mkhan@lozierinc.com
Michael Bowden KPFF Consulting Engineers michael.bowden@kpff.com
Raj Inamdar Sorani Finance &amp; Real Estate raj.inamdar@soranifinance.com
Gail Badger Choice New York Management gail.badger@choicenewyork.com /revgail1@gmail.com
Niles French Staten Island Economic Development Corporation (SIEDC) niles@siedc.org
James Prendamano Casandra Properties, Inc james@casandraproperties.com
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Name Org Name Email
Silas Leavitt HANAC, Inc. sleavitt@hanac.org
Joan Beck New Destiny Housing Corporation jbeck@newdestinyhousing.org
Tonya M Lewter La Vie Development, Inc. tlewter@laviedevelopment.com
Jennifer Chan Silman jchan@silman.com
Kara Haggerty Wilson Onion Flats kara@onionflats.com
Federico Cadeddu OMA fcadeddu@oma.com
Yangbo Du Sustainable Development Investment Finance Partnership of New York yd@sustdev.nyc
Jaiye Falusi Tishman Speyer jfalusi@tishmanspeyer.com
Amie Gross Amie Gross Architects asg@amiegrossarchitects.com
Thomas McMahon TLM Associates Tom@tlmnyc.com
Nohar Barnea Retell architecture Nohar.barnea@gmail.com
Jane Christen Pennrose jchristen@pennrose.com
Karen Gorman WellLife Network Inc karen.gorman@welllifenetwork.org
Keri Curtis CSD Housing kcurtis@csdhousing.com
Jeremy Dworken Foster + Partners jdworken@fosterandpartners.com
Joel millar David Baker Architects Joelmillar@dbaarchitect.com
MABIN MATHEW Incorporated Consultants Conin mabin.matthew@conin.ae
Valerio nelli KBN Services LLC valerio@buchhandler-nelli.com
Ricardo Ospino Ospino Engineering PLLC RICARDO@OSPINOENG.COM
Hazim al Khusaibi KBN SERVICES LLC h.khusaibi@k-ds.co
Anne Stevenson McCormack Baron Salazar anne.stevenson@mccormackbaron.com
Yaakov Shapiro Sterling Town Equities info@sterlingtown.com
Cameron Kostyra Selfhelp Realty Group, Inc. ckostyra@selfhelp.net
Sherazad Mehta Arup Sherazad.mehta@arup.com
Alex Saltzman Alchemy Properties alex@alchemy-properties.com
PAULO FLORES Architecture in Formation paulo@aifny.com

6


	Stapleton Addendum 1
	Contact List



